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ATTN: Document Control Desk
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CERTIFIED MAIL #7011 0470 0000 7716 1031 RETURN RECEIPT REQUEST

RE: REPLY TO A NOTICE OF VIOLIATION
Inspection Report 040-08964/11-002

Please find below Power Resource's Inc. reply to the Notice of Violation issued by the Nuclear
Regulatory Commission (NRC) to Power Resources, Inc. (PRI) on October 25, 2011. This
response is being provided in accordance with 10 CFR 2.201.

During an NRC inspection conducted on August 29 through September 1, 2011, three violations'
of NRC requirements were identified. The three violations are listed below-.'

1) "License condition 10.1.7 states, in part that the license shall maintain an area within the
restricted area boundary for storage of contaminated materials prior to their disposal.

Contrary to the above, on August 30, 2011, the licensee had two byproduct disposal bins,
containing contaminated materials, stored in an unrestricted area adjacent to the Central
Processing Plant.

This is a Severity Level IV violation (Section 6.7)."

2) "License condition 12.1 states, in part, that if the licensee is required to report any
wellfield excursions, spills, or pond leaks of source, 1 e.(2) byproduct material, and
process chemicals that may have an impact on the environment, or any other
incidents/events, to State or Federal Agencies, a report shall be* made to the NRC
Headquarters Project Manager within 24 hours. Also, once a notification of a spill is
made, the licensee is required to submit a written report documenting the event,
corrective actions, and the outcome within 30 days.

Contrary to the above, the licensee failed to provide a 30 day follow-up report for a spill
that occurred on May 5, 2011, in Mine Unit 15A. The licensee also failed to provide
NRC with copies of correspondence addressed to the Wyoming Department of
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Environmental Qual'ity, dated May 9, 2011, August 12, 2011 and August 26, 2011,
related to the spill at Mine Unit 15A.

This is a Severity Level IV violation (Section 6.9)."

3) "Section 3.3 of the NRC approved license applications states, in part, that monitoring and
alarm instrumentation are employed to provide centralized monitoring of key process
components, and when operating parameters move outside specified normal operating
ranges, an alarm will notify the operator to initiate corrective action to alleviate the
problem.

Contrary to the above, on May 3, 2011, a release of production fluids occurred in Mine
Unit 15A involving eight production wells, which caused operating parameters to move
outside of the specified normal operating range. As a result of this occurrence, no
automatic alarm was! received at satellite building SR-I to tell the night shift operator that
there was a problem.!

This is a Severity Leyel IV violation (Section 6.3)."

Reason for Violation #1
The two I1 e.(2) containers; were stored in a "Controlled Area" rather than a 'Restricted Area"
located behind the Central Processing Plant(CPP). The.CPP is located in the main office complex
area that has controlled access through coded locked gates that do not allow visitors, vendors,
delivery driver's or members of the public access to the site without permission from the main
office or CPP. In addition'the area is under constant surveillance with video back up and the
CPP is manned 24 hours a day 7 days a week by employees.

Corrective Actions
Cameco Resources immediately began the process of fencing the area around the loading dock
including both 1 le.(2) bins' and reclassified the area as a "Restricted Area". The fencing and
posting was completed on September 16, 2011 and the area is kept locked or occupied at all
times.

Date of full compliance
Full compliance was achieved on September 16, 2011.

Reason for Violation #2
On May 3, 201 l(stated as May 5, 2011 in the NRC inspection report) @10:30 am a release of
mining solutions located •in Mine Unit 15A Header House (HH) 15-20 was identified.
Notification was made to thle Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC), Wyoming Department of
environmental Quality (WDEQ), Land Quality Division and Water Quality Division within 24
hours. A written release of solutions report was required within five working days (WDEQ).
The report was written and sent to the Wyoming Department of Environmental Quality on May
9, 2011 and two courtesy copies should have been sent to Cameco Resources NRC project
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manager Mr. Doug Mandeville. The submittal letter had Mr. Mandeville as a cc recipient but, it
appears the courtesy copies were not mailed.

The letter dated August 12, 2011 contained the HH 15-20 soil sample analytical results that were
submitted to the WDEQ. The NRC was not included in the correspondence. The letter dated
August 26, 2011 a "Draft" Remediation Plan was sent to the WDEQ to review and provide
comments it was not intended to be a final document, after the WDEQ reviewed the document
and provided comments the document was officially submitted to WDEQ and the NRC.

During the first half of 2011 the Senior Safety, Health, Environment, Quality (SHEQ)
administrative assistant who managed all correspondence was intermittently absent. due to illness.
Three replacement contract employees were onsite during this time period that ultimately led to a
disruption in the management of correspondence. In addition correspondence was not sent by
certified mail to the NRC.

Corrective Actions
Two additional employees,: the SHEQ Administrative Assistant and Receptionist have been
properly trained to oversee the regulatory correspondence mailings.

A meeting was held with the SHEQ Manager and SHEQ Environmental Coordinator to discuss
NRC license condition 12.1 reporting requirements.

Date of full compliance
Full compliance for NRC license condition 12.1 reporting requirements and submitting
documents through certified mail was achieved on September 14, 2011.

Reason for Violation #3

On May 3, 2011 a release of mining fluid through eight production wells was discovered. During
this time all three line fuses were blown causing a complete loss of electrical power in Header
House (HH) 15-20. With the loss of all three phases of power the eight production pumps were
rendered inoperable. The injection feed pumps are located in a booster station or a satellite
which is on a separate electrical circuit therefore the injection feed pumps continued to pump
fluid to the HH 15-20 and ultimately the injection wells in the wellfield.

The HH 15-20 is equipped with a local alarm consisting of a red beacon on the outside of the
building that will alarm in the event of low/ high pressures or when fluid is indicated in the
basement or a loss of power to the header house. It is also equipped with an auto cla val brand
valve that will shut the injection flow in the event of a power outage or alarm phase. In the event
of a loss of power an uninterrupted power supply (UPS) that operates for 35 minutes to provide
backup power for the 15-20 header house alarm (red beacon). In addition the header house is
equipped with an alarm that will activate in the satellite facility in the event of low/ high
pressures or when fluid is indicated in the basement of the header house. If power is lost for
greater than 35 minutes, the header house red beacon will no longer flash and alarm capabilities
are no longer in effect. If all three phases of power are lost then the UPS system will activate a
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local alarm through a red light beacon located on the top of the header house. In the event that
power is not lost but the alarms are activated, notice would be sent to the satellite and a local
alarm at the header house would be activated.

HH 15-20, is located in Mine Unit 15A in the southwest portion of the Smith Ranch - Highland
(SRH) Project Area. Uranium mineralization occurs within the water bearing O-Sand unit of the
Fort Union Formation, which is typical for much of the SRH Project Area. The groundwater
potentiometric surface of the O-Sand aquifer within Mine Unit 15A is generally flat, but
groundwater likely flows in an easterly direction under natural conditions in: the absence of
nearby aquifer pumping or injection effects.

Because of the moderate relief of the land surface and generally flat groundwater potentiometric
surface of the O-Sand aquifer within Mine Unit 15A, the depth to O-Sand aquifer groundwater
varies across the mine unit and is a function of the topographic surface elevation. The central
and southwest portions of Mine Unit 15A exists in the uplands and the depth to O-Sand aquifer
groundwater ranges from about 150 feet (central portion) to greater than 250 feet (southwest
portion) below the ground surface. The northeast portion of Mine Unit 15A exists within an
ephemeral stream valley that is incised into the surrounding landscape. Because of this
topographically low geomorphic feature, the groundwater potentiometric surface of the O-Sand
production zone aquifer is encountered about 100 feet from the ground surface. This is in
contrast to other mine units within. the SRH project area, in which production zone
groundwater is usually in excess of 300-400 feet below the ground surface.

In the area of Mine Unit 15A - Header House 15-20, the depth to O-Sand groundwater is about
100 feet below the ground surface. Moving in an up-gradient direction along the axis of the
incised ephemeral stream valley, the depth to O-Sand aquifer groundwater increases quickly at a
rate proportional to the gradient of the valley. At the boundary separating Mine Unit 15A from
Mine Unit 15, the depth to 0-Sand aquifer groundwater is approximately 135 feet below the
ground surface.

Because Mine Unit 15A is in a non- typical mining zone where the production zone or "0 sand"
is approximately 100 feet below the ground surface (typically mining zones are 300'- 400'below
the ground surface) the pressure needed to force water out of the production wells is much less
than elsewhere on the mine site.

The investigation of this incident indicated that the alarms were not activated in the satellite
because all pressures were within the normal operating range and no leakage was indicated in the
header house basement. After the power was lost the UPS system came on and the red beacon on
the header house was activated. It was determined that the cla val brand valve failed to shut when
the power was lost. The satellite operators routine is inspect each header house every shift to
verify flows/pressures and overall condition of each house. In this case it appears that the
operator checked the header house early in his shift, after returning to• the satellite facility the
operator failed to review the past trends on the computer monitoring system which did indicate a
drop in pressure by approximately twenty psi. In addition the Central Plant Operator has the
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ability to observe the wellfield pressures. The operator on shift did observe a drop in pressure
but failed to verify the reason, and assumed that the satellite operator was simply adjusting flows.

Corrective Actions

As indicated above the reasons for the failure to alarm are due to mechanical failure and should
have been addressed by employees. It is anticipated that the controls listed below will address
the mechanical failure and t&ie human error.

The first corrective action is a new pressure differential alarm that has been installed in the SR-1
Satellite and the Central Processing Plant on the main injection line that has an audible alarm that
will sound in the trailer bay and on the control room computer if 10 psi difference is indicated.

The second corrective action is motor operated valve (MOV) that is installed in the 15-20 header
house as a back up to the cla val brand valve. The MOV will shut if the flow falls below 99
gallons per minute on the production line regardless of the power situation. In the event that the
MOV is activated an alarm i's indicated at the satellite and the header house.

The third corrective action is an electrical phase monitor located at the 15-20 header house to
detect loss of power on the incoming power supply. The 15-20 header house electrical phase
monitor has been tested to ensure its proper operation.

These corrective actions have all been implemented in HH 15-20 and additional MOV equipment
has been ordered for Mine Unit 15A Header House 15-19, 15-21, 15-22, and 15-23 which are all
located in the non-typical mining unit.

The fourth corrective action includes additional training to all Satellite and Central Plant
Operators.

Date of full compliance

It is anticipated that the equipment for the additional non typical header houses will be installed
by March 1, 2012.

Sincerely,

Brent Berg
General Manager

cc: D. Mandeville, USNRC (2 copies) CERTIFIED MAIL #7011 0470 0000 7716 1048
L. Spackman, WDEQ CERTIFIED MAIL #7011 0470 0000 7716 1055
SR 4.6.4.1
CR-Cheyenne
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